

SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE

DRAFT MINUTES OF THE SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 20 MARCH 2014 AT ALAMEIN SUITE - CITY HALL, MALTHOUSE LANE, SALISBURY, SP2 7TU.

Present:

Cllr Richard Britton, Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Brian Dalton, Cllr Christopher Devine (Vice-Chair), Cllr Jose Green, Cllr George Jeans, Cllr Mike Hewitt, Cllr Ian McLennan, Cllr Ian Tomes and Cllr Fred Westmoreland (Chairman)

26 Apologies for Absence

No apologises for absence were received.

27 Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on 6 February 2014 were presented.

Resolved:

The minutes were approved as a correct record of the meeting and signed by the Chairman.

28 **Declarations of Interest**

There were no declarations.

29 Chairman's Announcements

The Chairman raised the suggestion of an earlier start time for the future consideration of the Committee.

30 Public Participation and Councillors' Questions

The committee noted the rules on public participation.

31 **Planning Appeals**

The committee received details of the appeal decisions as detailed in the agenda.

Members discussed the growing need for gypsy sites in the south of Wiltshire. The Committee raised concern that the Development Plan Document (DPD) had not been produced yet and this is resulting in planning appeals. The Committee intends to raise the profile of this issue.

The dismissal of the appeal at Hillbilly Acre, Claredon was noted. An update by enforcement officers is to be provided at the next meeting.

32 Planning Applications

13/4728/OUT - Land adjacent 1 Longhedge Cottages, Longhedge, Salisbury, SP4 6BP

The planning officer presented the report to the Committee which recommended approval to be granted and circulated an item of late correspondence to be included on the council website with the agenda.

Members discussed the footpath on the parish boundary and clarification was sought over surrounding buildings on the site. In response to Committee questions, the planning officer confirmed that most of the surrounding buildings were light industrial and should not cause an issue with residential developments.

A potential restriction on the number of houses that could be constructed was discussed. In response, it was stated by the planning officer that Members would be agreeing to the access arrangements and the four dwellings only.

The access to the four dwellings was discussed by Members. It was stated by the planning officer that Highways would object to any additional accesses being added.

The level of screening required in this rural area was also raised. Concern was raised over the visibility of the four dwellings and also the development of a footpath that could be detrimental to the rural landscape. In response to these concerns, was stated that hedges cannot be used to screen two storey houses. There was little room remaining after the development of the dwellings, parking and the access road.

The significant development of the adjoining Longhedge site was also discussed. It was stated that the area was about to become a very urban development and it was queried whether a restriction could be put on this application until a roundabout has been built as part of the Longhedge development. In response, it was stated that the decision on the current application could not be made dependent on the accounts of a third party.

Concern was raised that if Longhedge was not developed then this would have been four dwellings approved in the open countryside, rather than next to another development. The local member, Cllr Ian McLennan, spoke in objection to the application.

At the conclusion of debate, it was,

Resolved:

That the application be refused for the following reason:

The proposed dwellings would be located on a site which is currently located in the open countryside, and is not specifically allocated for housing development in the South Wiltshire Core Strategy or the draft Wiltshire Core Strategy. The adjacent A345 road onto to which the dwellings would have a vehicular access is a very busy arterial road between Salisbury and Amesbury, where traffic speeds are very high. A large area of land immediately adjacent the site has been allocated for a significant mixed development within the development plan, and planning permission has been granted. A new highway arrangement has been proposed as part of the adjacent development, which will help improve highway safety and reduce traffic speeds.

However, this adjacent permission is in outline form and development has yet to commence. Consequently, at the current time, the surrounding land remains of a rural character, and it may be some time before the land is actually developed, including the provision of a roundabout. As a result, there is no certainty that the final development will resemble the layout currently envisaged or that the future developments would not conflict.

Consequently, due to the lack of certainty that the development of the area would occur as currently envisaged, it is considered that the scheme would be likely to result in housing development within the open countryside also result in additional traffic generation onto a busy arterial road to the detriment of highway safety, contrary to policies CP6, C2, C7, H23 & G2 of the adopted South Wiltshire Core Strategy.

13/02520/FUL - The White Hart, 1 Dean Lane, Whiteparish, Wiltshire, SP5 2RG

Public Participation

Mr Peter Stone, Whiteparish Parish Council, spoke in objection to the application.

The planning officer presented a report to the Committee which recommended that the application be approved.

Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the officer. Concern was raised over the narrow access to the site and failure to meet parking standards and potential worsening congestion.

It was stated that parking standards should be enforced and that parking on the road would not be suitable.

Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the Committee, as detailed above

The Local member, Cllr Richard Britton, then spoke in support of the application.

A debate followed where clarification over the speed limit in the area was sought, and there was discussion over the suitability of parking on the road and the need for appropriate parking standards to be enforced.

Resolved:

That the application be approved subject to the following conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied until the first five metres of the access to the west of the dwelling, measured from the edge of the carriageway, has been consolidated and surfaced (not loose stone or gravel). The access shall be maintained as such thereafter.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

3. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans: parking layout, site location plan, design and access statement, DRG No. 13061/1, 13061/2 received 6/8/14.

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

Cllr Richard Britton requested that his vote against the motion to approve permission be recorded.

As he had arrived late to the meeting and missed part of the report process, Cllr George Jeans took no part in the debate or vote on the item.

35 Urgent Items

There were no urgent items

(Duration of meeting: 5.00 - 6.10 pm)

The Officer who has produced these minutes is David Parkes of Democratic Services, direct line (01225) 718220, e-mail david.parkes@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115